
              NOTICE

             OF

MEETING

BERKSHIRE PENSION FUND PANEL

will meet on

MONDAY, 14TH JANUARY, 2019
at

4.00 pm

In

ASCOT AND BRAY - TOWN HALL, MAIDENHEAD

TO: MEMBERS OF THE BERKSHIRE PENSION FUND PANEL

COUNCILLORS JOHN LENTON (CHAIRMAN), DAVID HILTON (VICE-
CHAIRMAN), RICHARD KELLAWAY AND MALCOLM ALEXANDER 

ADVISORY MEMBERS: CLLR BROOKER, CLLR JONES, MARK BUTCHER, 
CLLR WORRALL, CLLR LAW, CLLR JARVIS, ENGIN ERYILMAZ AND ASIA 
ALLISON

Karen Shepherd – Service Lead Democratic Services.  Issued: 04/01/19

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting.

The agenda is available on the Council’s web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the 
Panel Administrator  david.cook@rbwm.gov.uk 

Accessibility - Members of the public wishing to attend this meeting are requested to notify the clerk in advance of
any accessibility issues. Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the
building quickly and calmly by the nearest exit. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts. Do
not re-enter the building until told to do so by a member of staff. Recording of Meetings –In line with the council’s
commitment to transparency the public part of the meeting will be audio recorded, and may also be filmed and
broadcast through the online application Periscope. If filmed, the footage will be available through the council’s main
Twitter feed @RBWM or via the Periscope website. The audio recording will also be made available on the RBWM
website, after the meeting. Filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings may be undertaken by any
person attending the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are acknowledging that you may be audio or video
recorded and that this recording will be in the public domain. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy,
please speak to the Democratic Services or Legal representative at the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
mailto:david.cook@rbwm.gov.uk


AGENDA

PART I
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO

1.  APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

-

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

5 - 6

3.  MINUTES

To approve the Part I minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2019.
 

7 - 10

4.  PENSION FUND PANEL WORKPLAN 2018-19

To consider the report.
 

11 - 46

5.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

To consider passing the following resolution:-
“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion takes place 
on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of Schedule 12A of the Act"
 

-



PART II - PRIVATE MEETING

ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 
NO

6.  MINUTES 

To approve the Part II minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2019.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

47 - 48

7.  UPDATE ON CURRENT PERFORMANCE 

To consider the latest update.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

To 
Follow

8.  EMPLOYER RISK SERVICE PROPOSAL 

To consider the report.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

49 - 62





 
MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS  

 
Disclosure at Meetings 
 
If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial 
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to 
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.   
 
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not 
take part in the discussion or vote at a meeting. The speaking time allocated for Members to make 
representations is at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting.  In order to avoid any accusations of taking 
part in the discussion or vote, after speaking, Members should move away from the panel table to a public area 
or, if they wish, leave the room.  If the interest declared has not been entered on to a Members’ Register of 
Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in 
carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been 
fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the 
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice 
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting. 
 
A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx. 
As soon as we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the 
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Prejudicial Interests 
 
Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so 
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s 
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.   
 
A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations in the item: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as 
we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the public area for 
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Personal interests 
 
Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a 
Member when making a decision on council matters.  
 

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x 
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, I will take part in the discussion and vote on the 
matter. 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



BERKSHIRE PENSION FUND PANEL

MONDAY, 12 NOVEMBER 2018

PRESENT: Councillors John Lenton (Chairman), Malcolm Alexander, Richard 
Kellaway and David Hilton (Vice-Chairman).

Advisory Members: Councillor Worrall, Councillor Brooker, Councillor Law and Mr
Butcher.

Officers: Philip Boyton, David Cook, Kevin Taylor and Rob Stubbs. Local Pension
Partnership (LPP) representatives Chris Rule, Richard J. Tomlinson and Kevin Parkin.  
Andrew Harrison, Law Debenture.  Investment Group Rohan Worrall and Aoifinn 
Devitt.    

APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were received by Cllr Jarvis.  

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Brooker declared a personal interest on the agenda items as he was a governor at 
schools that paid into the pension fund as this was not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest he 
stayed and considered the items.

MINUTES 

Resolved unanimously: that the Part I minutes of the meeting held on 17 September 
2018 were approved as a true and correct record. 

PENSION FUND PANEL WORK PLAN 2018-19 

The Deputy Pension Fund Manager introduced the report which considered a number of 
Administering Authority policy statements for review as set out in the work-plan for 2018/19 
approved by Panel at their meeting on 16 July 2018.

The Panel were asked to consider the items listed in appendix 1 to this report and
suggest any amendments or approve the policy statements as required.

Resolved unanimously that: Panel notes the report and:

i) Approves the policy statements set out in Appendix 1 to the report having put 
forward any suggested amendments to those policy documents.
ii) Request that officers produce and publish the approved policy statements on the 
Berkshire Pension Fund website.

PASS-THROUGH ADMISSION AGREEMENTS 

The Deputy Pension Fund Manager introduced the report regarding the risks of admitting 
private companies into the Pension Fund.

The Panel were informed that there was an increasing trend of private companies successfully 
bidding for local government contracts that can result in staff being TUPE transferred across 
to private companies which brought  financial risks for the Pension Fund.  The Panel were 
asked to consider so-called pass-through arrangements where the perceived financial risk is 
considered to be acceptable.

7

Agenda Item 3



The Panel were informed that when it was decided to outsource a service a procurement 
exercise is undertaken and details of the potential pension costs should be included. This will 
normally involve the Fund actuary preparing a report at a cost of £1,580 plus VAT in which an 
employer contribution rate and any bond / indemnity level is set.

During this procurement process the financial risks associated with becoming an admission 
body under the LGPS Regulations need to consider by all parties.  The level at which the 
pension risks should be retained by the transferor scheme employer or transferred to the 
admission body should be decided.

There was no difference in the above undertakings for large transfers or the transfer of a small 
number of employees.  Where a small number of employees is to be transferred a pass-
through arrangement becomes a more viable option for all parties.  The benefits of such an 
arrangement were detailed in paragraph 2.6 of the report but in essence pass-through works 
by agreeing a fixed employer contribution rate for the entire length of the service contractwith 
all other pension risks (other than in most cases early retirement strain costs) being retained 
by the transferor scheme employer.

Cllr Hilton mentioned that if the arrangements were to be approved then there should be an 
upper limit on the number of employees transferred that would be delegated to officers. In 
response it was suggested that this could either be a financial limit or an employee number. 
Cllr Hilton felt that this decision should be up to the individual authorities within the scheme. 

Cllr Worrall asked if other staff in the private company would be eligible to join the scheme and 
if the private company was sold would the pension be transferred.  The Panel were informed 
that this would depend on if it was an open or closed agreement and that most would be 
closed.  If the company was sold then TUPE still applied. 

Resolved unanimously: that the Panel notes the report and:

i) Approves the principle of pass-through where the risk to the Pension
Fund is negated;
ii) Agrees to delegate responsibility to officers to consult with scheme
employers and publish guidelines on the website.

GAD SECTION 13 REPORT 

The Deputy Pension Fund Manager introduced the report that provided an overview of The 
Government Actuary’s report issued in accordance with Section 13 of the Public Service 
Pensions Act 2013.

The Panel were informed that the Section 13 report issued on 27 September 2018 was the 
first formal report of its kind and was based on the results of the 2016 triennial valuation of the 
LGPS Funds in England and Wales.  

There had been a dry run based on the 2013 triennial valuation which highlighted two areas of 
concern for the Berkshire Pension Fund; Funding Level and Deficit Recovery Period, with both 
reporting ‘amber’. 

Officers had met the Government Actuary with the Fund’s own Actuary to discuss these areas 
of concern.  The Government Actuary appeared positive in that the Fund had undertaken the 
appropriate actions to increase employer contribution rates and that the funding level had 
improved since 2016.  Given it was acknowledged that action had been undertaken it was a 
concern to the administering authority that the two issues were still mentioned throughout the 
2018 report. 

8



Cllr Hilton mentioned that the chart on agenda pack page 185 the 2016 long term cost 
efficiency measures showed that there was no authority with a required return higher than our 
5%.  The Panel were informed that the report did show the Fund to be in a good position and 
that the 5% return was due to a lower contribution rate requiring better returns from 
investments. 

Cllr Hilton asked if the LGA had responded to the report and was informed that they would be 
in due course. 

Resolved unanimously: that the Panel notes this report and:

i) Considered the Section 13 reports attached to this paper.

DATA QUALITY EXERCISE 

The Deputy Pension Fund Manager introduced the report regarding an overview of The 
Pensions Regulator’s requirements around data quality and accuracy.

The Panel were informed that with the introduction of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 all 
public service schemes were required to keep specific data on members and beneficiaries and 
must be able to demonstrate that the data they hold is of the highest quality and standard.  
The Pensions Regulator was overseeing this requirement. 

The appendix to the report set out the results of the first data quality exercise recently 
undertaken. Over 1.5m data items had been tested with a 98.85% pass rate being achieved.  
However, this still resulted in around 28,000 data items needing investigation  Whilst many of 
these items had already been amended or were under review it is apparent that the main area 
for concern is the current address file for scheme members particularly where they had moved 
and not notified the Fund of their new address.

The Chairman asked about the quality of data supplied to the administering authority and was 
informed that about half of the membership was now administered through  I-Connect., The 
Pension Fund’s data, however, can only be as good as the information supplied to it by 
Scheme employers and scheme members   Data checks are regularly undertaken and 
employers are chased for up to date data.  With more scheme members receiving information 
by email and via online links picking up a change of address was becoming harder due to 
fewer items being sent by post and so fewer undeliverable items being returned to sender.

The Deputy Pension Fund Manager explained that the Pension Fund would be using a tracing 
service to locate ‘lost’ members. Cllr. Worrall asked why the Pension Fund should spend 
money tracing individuals who have failed to keep it informed of changes in address.  The 
Deputy Pension Fund Manager explained that it is a requirement under Disclosure 
Regulations and is part of the Pension Regulator’s focus on governance.  

Resolved unanimously: that the Panel notes the report and:

i) Monitors the quality of data through future administration reports, and
ii) Recognises the importance placed upon the Scheme Manager
(Administering Authority) in meeting the standards imposed by the
Pensions Regulator.

ADMINISTRATION REPORT 

The Deputy Pension Fund Manager introduced the latest Administration Report covering the 
period 1st July 2018 to 30 September 2018.

9



The following information was highlighted to the Panel:

 It was the first time that over 70,000 scheme member records were being 
administered. 

 Data collection and quality was improved by using i-Connect.
 Officers were working with Bracknell Forest Council and Slough Borough Council to 

bring them on board with i-Connect. 
 Working with Wokingham schools regarding i-Connect. 
 Processing of starters and leavers targets were being met. 
 Successfully issued Annual Benefit Statements to 98% of scheme members across all 

participating 257 scheme employers by the statutory deadline of 31 August 2018.
 Data quality, officers have reviewed the findings and are already taking action to 

resolve the data discrepancies found.
 Officers were meeting with Wokingham School Business Managers on 22 November 

2018 regarding data matching.

Resolved unanimously: that the Panel notes the report and:

I. All areas of governance and administration as reported.
II. All key performance indicators.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of 
part I of Schedule 12A of the Act.

The meeting, which began at 4.00 pm, finished at 5.10 pm

CHAIRMAN……………………………….

DATE………………………………..........

10



Report Title: Pension Fund Panel Work-plan
Contains Confidential or
Exempt Information?

YES - Part I

Member reporting: Councillor Lenton, Chairman Berkshire
Pension Fund and Pension Fund Advisory
Panels

Meeting and Date: Berkshire Pension Fund and Pension
Fund Advisory Panels – 14 January 2019

Responsible Officer(s): Kevin Taylor, Deputy Pension Fund
Manager

Wards affected: None

1 DETAILS OF RECOMMENDATION(S)

RECOMMENDATION: That Panel notes the report and:

i) Approves the policy statements set out in Appendix 1 to the report
having put forward any suggested amendments to those policy
documents.

ii) Request that officers produce and publish the approved policy
statements on the Berkshire Pension Fund website.

2 REASON(S) FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) AND OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 In accordance with Regulation 53 of the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013 (“the Regulations”) and as listed in Part 1 of Schedule 3 of the
Regulations, RBWM is an Administering Authority (Scheme Manager) required to
maintain a Pension Fund for the Scheme.

2.2 An Administering Authority is responsible for managing and administering the
Scheme in relation to any person for which it is the appropriate Administering
Authority under the Regulations.

2.3 The Pension Fund Panel as set out in RBWM’s Constitution acts as the Scheme
Manager and is therefore responsible for ensuring that the Administering Authority
fulfils its statutory responsibilities in accordance with the Regulations and the
Public Service Pension Act 2013

2.4 The purpose of this paper is to identify for Panel members a number of policies for
their consideration and review as set out in the work-plan for 2018-19 in order to

REPORT SUMMARY

1. This report brings to Members’ attention a number of Administering Authority
policy statements for review as set out in the work-plan for 2018/19 approved
by Members at the meeting on 16 July 2018.

2. Members are asked to consider the items listed in appendix 1 to this report and
suggest any amendments or approve the policy statements as required.

11

Agenda Item 4



meet certain Administering Authority statutory requirements set out in the
Regulations.

3 KEY IMPLICATIONS

3.1 The Administering Authority (Scheme Manager) is required by law to maintain the
Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund is accordance with the Regulations and
all other associated legislation. Failure to do so could result in the Pensions
Regulator issuing fines to the Authority where he deems it to have failed in areas
of scheme governance, risk management and administration.

4 FINANCIAL DETAILS / VALUE FOR MONEY

4.1 Not applicable.

5 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended) set out
the statutory requirements of the Administering Authority.

6 RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 Failure to maintain the Pension Fund in line with statutory legislation could result
in a scheme member or scheme employer reporting the Administering Authority
to the Pensions Regulator for failing to fulfil its statutory responsibilities.

7 POTENTIAL IMPACTS

7.1 Failure to maintain the Pension Fund in accordance with statutory legislation
could result in a loss of confidence in the Administering Authority.

8 CONSULTATION

N/A

9 TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

9.1 Implementation timetable

Date Details
14 January 2019 1 – Governance Compliance Statement;

2 – Pension Administration Strategy
3 – Audit Reports (if available)

11 March 2019 1 – Abatement Policy
2 – Funding Strategy Statement
3 – Investment Strategy Statement
4 – Pension Fund Business Plan 2019-20

Q1 2019/20 1 – Reporting Breaches of the Law
2 – Risk Management Policy
3 - Risk Assessment Register
4 – SLA Between RBWM and RCBPF

12



Date Details
Q2 2019/20 1 – Communication Strategy

2 – Pension Administration Strategy
3 – Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts
4 – UK Stewardship Code Compliance

Q3 2019/20 1 – Actuarial Valuation Report
2 – Administering Authority Decisions Policy
3 – Governance Compliance Statement
4 – Audit Reports

Q4 2019/20 1 – Abatement Policy
2 – Funding Strategy Statement
3 – Investment Strategy Statement
4 -Pension Fund Business Plan 2020/21

10 APPENDICES

10.1 The appendices to the report are as follows:

 Appendix 1 – Governance Compliance Statement
Pension Administration Strategy

11 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

11.1 Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended)
11.2 Public Service Pensions Act 2013
11.3 The Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice No. 14

12 CONSULTATION (MANDATORY)

Name of
consultee

Post held Date
issued for
comment

Date
returned
with
comments

Cllr John Lenton Chairman – Berkshire
Pension Fund Panel

Rob Stubbs Section 151 Officer

13



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

GOVERNANCE 
 
COMPLIANCE 
 
STATEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

14



Document created May 2015 
Date last reviewed January 20198 
Approved by Pension Panel 1422 January 20198 

2 

 
 
 
 
 

15



Document created May 2015 
Date last reviewed January 20198 
Approved by Pension Panel 1422 January 20198 

3 

CONTENTS 
 
INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................. 5 

STRUCTURE .................................................................................................................. 5 

REPRESENTATION ....................................................................................................... 6 

SELECTION AND ROLE OF LAY MEMBERS ............................................................... 7 

VOTING .......................................................................................................................... 7 

TRAINING / FACILITY TIME / EXPENSES .................................................................... 7 

MEETINGS (frequency/Quorum) .................................................................................. 8 

ACCESS ......................................................................................................................... 8 

SCOPE ........................................................................................................................... 8 

PUBLICITY ..................................................................................................................... 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16



Document created May 2015 
Date last reviewed January 20198 
Approved by Pension Panel 1422 January 20198 

4 

 
 
 

17



Document created May 2015 
Date last reviewed January 20198 
Approved by Pension Panel 1422 January 20198 

5 

INTRODUCTION 

 
This document details the compliance of the Royal Borough of Windsor and 
Maidenhead, as the administering authority of the Royal County of Berkshire Pension 
Fund, with the guidance issued for governance of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government.  It 
has been prepared as required by Regulation 55 of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme Regulations 2013. 
 
The Regulations require the administering authority to prepare this written statement 
setting out whether or not it delegates its functions or part of its functions to a committee, 
a sub-committee or an officer of the authority. 
 
Where the administering authority does delegate all or part of its functions the statement 
must include the terms, structure and operational procedures of the delegation, the 
frequency of any committee or sub-committee meetings and whether such a committee 
or sub-committee includes representatives of Scheme employers and members, and if 
so, whether those representatives have voting rights. 
 
In addition, the administering authority must state the extent to which a delegation, or the 
absence of a delegation, complies with guidance given by the Secretary of State and, to 
the extent that it does not comply, the reasons for not complying. 
 
The administering authority must also set out details of the terms, structure and 
operational procedures relating to the local pension board established under regulation 
106 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 as inserted by the 
Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2015. 
 
This governance compliance statement must be published by the administering 
authority, kept under review and amended following any material change to any matters 
included within, once any consultation has been concluded. 

STRUCTURE 

 
The Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead (RBWM) has been designated as the 
administering authority to the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund in accordance 
with Part 1 of Schedule 3 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013. 
 
For the purposes of managing the Pension Fund, RBWM delegates its powers under the 
Constitution of the Council where it sets out the functions of the Royal County of 
Berkshire Pension Fund Panel (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Main Panel’), the Royal 
County of Berkshire Pension Fund Advisory Panel (hereinafter referred to as ‘the 
Advisory Panel’) and the Berkshire Pension Board (hereinafter referred to as ‘the 
Pension Board’).  As such several principles have been set out to ensure compliance 
with the scheme regulations. 
 

i) The management of the administration of benefits and strategic 
allocationmanagement of fund assets. 

 
Compliant – The Constitution of the Council defines the responsibilities of ‘the 
Main Panel’ to manage the Pension Fund. 

 
 
 

18



Document created May 2015 
Date last reviewed January 20198 
Approved by Pension Panel 1422 January 20198 

6 

ii) Representatives of Scheme employers and Scheme members should sit on 
‘the Advisory Panel’ to underpin the work of ‘the Main Panel’. 

 
Compliant – Membership of ‘the Advisory Panel’ includes five Elected Members 
from RBWM, one Elected Member from each of the other five Berkshire Unitary 
Authorities, three other Scheme employer representatives, two union 
representatives, and two members to represent the active, deferred and retired 
Scheme members. 

 
iii) The structure of ‘the Main Panel’ and ‘the Advisory Panel’ should ensure 
effective communication across both levels. 

 
Compliant – ‘The Advisory Panel’ meets concurrently with ‘the Main Panel’ with 
both Panels receiving the same information. 

 
iv) At least one seat on ‘the Main Ppanel’ should be allocated for a member of 
‘the Advisory Panel’. 

 
Complaint – All five seats on ‘the Main Panel’ are allocated to the five RBWM 
members of ‘the Advisory Panel’. 
 
v) The structure of ‘the Pension Board’ must consist of an equal number of 
Scheme member and Scheme employer representatives all of whom have voting 
rights. 
 
Compliant – Membership of ‘the Pension Board’ consists of three Scheme 
member representatives and three Scheme employer representatives. 

REPRESENTATION 

 
All key stakeholders should be afforded the opportunity to be represented with ‘the Main 
Panel’, ‘the Advisory Panel’ and ‘the Pension Board’.  To ensure compliance a number 
of principles have been identified. 
 
The key stakeholders are: 
 
 i) Scheme employers. 
 

Compliant – The six Berkshire Unitary Authorities and up to three of the other 
Scheme employers are represented on ‘the Advisory Panel’.  In addition three 
Scheme employer representatives make up membership of ‘the Pension Board’ 

 
 ii) Scheme members (including deferred and retired members). 
 

Compliant – ‘The Advisory Panel’ has two representatives from the major trades 
unions and makes provision to have two representatives from the active, 
deferred or retired Scheme membership.  In addition 3 Scheme member 
representatives sit on ‘the Pension Board’ 

 
 iii) Independent Professional Observers. 
 

Compliant – An Independent Adviser attends each meeting of ‘the Main Panel’ 
and ‘the Advisory Panel’.  Independent Advisers are also required to attend 
meetings of ‘the Pension Board’ as may be requested. 

 

19



Document created May 2015 
Date last reviewed January 20198 
Approved by Pension Panel 1422 January 20198 

7 

 iv) Expert advisers (on an ad-hoc basis) 
 

Compliant – Expert advisers are invited to meetings of ‘the Main Panel’ and ‘the 
Advisory Panel’ as required.  Independent Strategy Advisers attend meetings of 
the Investment Working Group.  In addition expert advisers are required to attend 
meetings of ‘the Pension Board’ as may be requested. 

 
v) Where lay members sit on either ‘the Main Panel’ or ‘the Advisory Panel’ they 
are treated equally in terms of access to papers, meetings and training and are 
given full opportunity to contribute to the decision making process with or without 
voting rights.  No lay members sit on ‘the Pension Board’. 

 
Compliant – Members of both ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the Advisory Panel’ and ‘the 
Pension Board’ are treated equally in respect of access to papers, meetings and 
training.  All members are given full opportunity to contribute to the decision 
making process although only members of ‘the Main Panel’ have voting rights. 

SELECTION AND ROLE OF LAY MEMBERS 

 
Members of ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the Advisory Panel’ and ‘the Pension Board’ need to be 
fully aware of the status, role and function that they are required to perform. 
 
Compliant – Bodies nominating individuals for membership of ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the 
Advisory Panel’ or ‘the Pension Board’ are periodically reminded that it is their 
responsibility to ensure that all members are aware of their responsibilities.  The Chair of 
‘the Main Panel’ will remind members of both ‘the Main Panel’ and ‘the Advisory Panel’ 
of their responsibilities as required.  The Chair of ‘the Pension Board’ will remind 
members of ‘the Pension Board’ of their responsibilities as required.  Each set of papers 
for every Panel/Board meeting contains a reminder to members of their duty in respect 
to potential conflicts of interest.  Members are expected to declare conflicts of interest 
and abide by RBWM’s rules on conflicts of interest. 

VOTING 

 
The policy of the administering authority on voting rights must be clear and transparent 
and include justification for not extending voting rights to each body or group 
represented on ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the Advisory Panel’ or ‘the Pension Board’. 
 
Compliant – The Constitution of RBWM sets out the terms of reference and voting 
rights of ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the Advisory Panel’ and ‘the Pension Board’. 

TRAINING / FACILITY TIME / EXPENSES 

 
i) In relation to the way in which statutory and related decisions are taken by 
RBWM, a clear policy on training, facility time and reimbursement of expenses in 
respect of members involved in that decision making process must be made. 

 
Compliant – All members of ‘the Main Panel’ and ‘the Advisory Panel’ are 
entitled to attend or request training.  Members of ‘the Pension Board’ are 
required to have a working knowledge of the LGPS regulations and other 
associated legislation as it relates to the governance and administration of the 
Scheme and so must commit to undertaking the relevant training in order to 
achieve this requirement.  All members of ‘the Main Panel, ‘the Advisory Panel  
and ‘the Board’ are entitled to request the use of facilities belonging to RBWM in 

20



Document created May 2015 
Date last reviewed January 20198 
Approved by Pension Panel 1422 January 20198 

8 

respect of their respective duties and reasonable expenses incurred will be 
reimbursed upon request. 

 
 ii) Any policy must apply equally to all members of the Panels/Board. 
 

Compliant – No distinction is made between members of ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the 
Advisory Panel’ or ‘the Board’. 

MEETINGS (frequency/Quorum) 

 
 i) RBWM will hold meetings of ‘the Main Panel’ at least quarterly. 
 

Compliant – Meetings are held quarterly.  To be quorate two members are 
required to attend. 

 
ii) RBWM will hold meetings with ‘the Advisory Panel’ at least twice a year 
synchronised with the dates for meetings of ‘the Main Panel’. 

 
 Compliant – Both Panels meet concurrently 
 

iii) RBWM will hold meetings of ‘the Pension Board’ ahead of each meeting of 
‘the Main Panel’ and ‘the Advisory Panel’. 
 
Compliant – ‘The Pension Board’ meets quarterly at a satisfactorily and mutually 
agreed date ahead of each meeting of ‘the Main Panel’ and ‘the Advisory Panel’.  
To be quorate at least 50% of the Scheme Member representatives and Scheme 
Employer Representatives must attend with at least one member being present 
from each group. 

 
iv) Where lay members are included in the formal governance arrangements 
RBWM will provide a forum outside of those arrangements by which the interests 
of key stakeholders can be represented. 
 
Compliant – ‘The Advisory Panel’ has four lay members.  An annual Scheme 
employer meeting is held in March/April with an annual Scheme member meeting 
being held in November.  In addition pension surgeries and employer training 
events are held throughout the year. 

ACCESS 

 
Subject to any rules in RBWM’s Constitution, all members of ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the 
Advisory Panel’ and ‘the Pension Board’ will have equal access to committee papers, 
documents and advice that falls to be considered at meetings of the Panels/Board. 
 
Compliant – All members of ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the Advisory Panel’ and ‘the Pension 
Board’ have equal access to Panel/Board papers, documents and advice that falls to be 
considered at Panel/Board meetings. 

SCOPE 

 
RBWM will take steps to bring wider Scheme issues within the scope of their 
governance arrangements. 
 
Compliant – Wider Scheme issues are considered by ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the Advisory 

21



Document created May 2015 
Date last reviewed January 20198 
Approved by Pension Panel 1422 January 20198 

9 

Panel’ and ‘the Pension Board’ on a regular basis. 

PUBLICITY 

 
RBWM will publish details of their governance arrangements in such a way that 
interested stakeholders can express their interest in wanting to be part of those 
arrangements. 
 
Compliant – The Governance Policy Statement is published on the Royal County of 
Berkshire Pension Fund website (www.berkshirepensions.org.uk) and is available on 
request from the Pension FundManager. 
 
 
 
Approved by The Berkshire Pension Fund Panel on 1422 January 20198 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

22

http://www.berkshirepensions.org.uk/


1 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PENSION 
ADMINISTRATION 
STRATEGY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23



2 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24



3 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION.......................................................................................................... 4 

1.1 Strategic Aims .......................................................................................................... 4 

1.2 Legislative Framework .............................................................................................. 4 

2.0 KEY OBJECTIVES ...................................................................................................... 5 

3.0 ACHIEVING THE OBJECTIVES ................................................................................ 76 

3.1  Liaison and communication ...................................................................................... 7 

3.2 Compliance with statutory requirements ................................................................... 8 

3.3 Improving the flow of communication ........................................................................ 9 

3.4 Establishment of levels of performance (including SLA) ......................................... 10 

3.5 Procedures for producing performance statistics .................................................... 11 

3.6 Circumstances for issuing notices of underperformance ......................................... 12 

3.7 Disputes ................................................................................................................. 13 

4.0 REVIEW AND CONSULTATION PROCESS ............................................................. 14 

ANNEX 1 – LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK FOR THIS STRATEGY ..................................... 15 

ANNEX 2 – WRITTEN NOTICES OF UNSATISFACTORY PERFORMANCE ..................... 23 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



4 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
This is the Pension Administration Strategy for the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund 
having been developed in consultation with Scheme employers within the Fund. 
 
The 1st April 2015 was a key milestone in the governance arrangements of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) as from that date the Pensions Regulator (tPR) took 
responsibility for setting standards of administration and governance on all administrative 
aspects of the Scheme.  In addition the local Pension Board now has an independent scrutiny 
role in assisting the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead (‘RBWM’) as the 
Administering Authority to the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund (‘the Fund’), with its 
regulatory compliance, effective and efficient administration and governance of the Pension 
Fund. 
 
The LGPS Regulations 2013 allow the 
Pension Fund Administering Authority 
(sometimes referred to as the Scheme 
Manager) to prepare a Pension Administration 
Strategy (‘the Strategy’) for the sole purpose of 
improving the administrative processes within 
their LGPS Fund.  This Strategy replaces any 
earlier versions and ensures the governance 
and administration requirements of tPR are 
properly addressed as they fall to the Fund 
and its Scheme employers. 
 
1.1 Strategic Aims 
 
The aim of this Strategy is to continue 
progress towards a seamless, automated 
pension service, employing appropriate 
technologies and best practice which both significantly improve the quality of information 
overall and the speed with which it is processed to provide better information for Scheme 
employers and stakeholders and a more efficient service to Scheme members.  It outlines, in 
conjunction with the Pension Administration Service Level Agreement, the quality and 
performance standards expected of all Scheme employers and Admission Bodies within the 
Fund. 
 
The Strategy is designed to be a road map as to how the highest standards of administration 
can be achieved by adopting the most efficient and cost effective practices thereby ensuring a 
consistent approach to pension administration across all Scheme employers in partnership 
with the Fund so that all Scheme members ultimately receive the highest standard of service 
in the most efficient and effective manner possible. 
 
1.2 Legislative Framework 
 
The Fund and its Scheme employers must have regard to this Strategy when carrying out 
their Scheme functions.  This Strategy has been made in accordance with Regulation 59 of 
the LGPS Regulations 2013 which allows the Administering Authority to prepare a Pension 
Administration Strategy following consultation with its Scheme employers to facilitate best 
practices and efficient customer service. 
 
As part of Regulation 59 all of the following matters are to be considered to ensure that the 
aims of this Strategy are achieved: 
 
 

26



5 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

Procedures for liaison and communication… 
 

…between the Administering Authority and its Scheme 
employers with the aim of clarifying the roles and 
responsibilities of both the Administering Authority and 
the Scheme employers in administering the LGPS. 

 
Compliance with statutory requirements… 
 

…setting out clear procedures which aim to secure that 
the Administering Authority and its Scheme employers 
comply with those statutory requirements and with any 
agreement about levels of performance. 

 
Procedures for improving the flow of communication… 
 

…between the Administering Authority and its Scheme 
employers to enable the Scheme functions to be carried 
out effectively and efficiently. 

 
Establishment of levels of performance… 
 

…that both the Administering Authority and its Scheme employers are expected to 
achieve including the setting of performance targets, the making of agreements about 
levels of performance and associated matters and such other matters as the 
Administering Authority considers appropriate. 
 

Procedures for producing performance statistics… 
 

…and the publication of an annual report dealing with the extent to which the 
Administering Authority and its Scheme employers have achieved the levels of 
performance established. 
 

Production of a Pension Administration Service Level Agreement (SLA) 
 

…setting out the various responsibilities of the Administering Authority and the 
Scheme employer with workflows being monitored and findings reported to the 
Berkshire Pension Fund Panel, Pension Fund Advisory Panel and Pension Board as 
part of an Administration Stewardship report. 

 
Circumstances for issuing notices of underperformance… 

 
…under Regulation 70 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 
(Additional costs arising from Scheme employer’s level of performance) on account of 
the Administering Authority considering that a Scheme employer’s performance in 
carrying out its Scheme functions has been unsatisfactory and associated matters as 
considered appropriate. 

 
In addition to the above the Administering Authority has power to consider any other matters 
that it believes to be appropriate for inclusion in this strategy and will consult with its Scheme 
employers and such other persons as required. 

2.0 KEY OBJECTIVES 
 
The key objectives of this Strategy align with the Pensions Regulator’s ‘Code of Practice No. 
14 – Governance and Administration of Public Service Pension Schemes’ and the Pensions 

27

http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/codes/code-governance-administration-public-service-pension-schemes.aspx
http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/codes/code-governance-administration-public-service-pension-schemes.aspx


6 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

and Lifetime Savings Association’s (PLSA) ‘Best practice guide for employers participating in 
the LGPS’ and are designed to ensure that: 
 

 The Fund and Scheme employers are aware of and understand their respective roles 
and responsibilities under the LGPS Regulations and in the delivery of administrative 
functions (largely defined in the Pension Administration Service Level Agreement); 
 

 The Fund operates in accordance with LGPS Regulations and is aligned with tPR 
requirements in demonstrating compliance and scheme governance; 
 

 Communication processes are in place to enable both the Fund and Scheme 
employers to proactively and responsively engage with each other and other 
stakeholders; 
 

 Accurate records are maintained for the purpose of calculating pension entitlements 
and Scheme employer liabilities, ensuring all information and data is communicated 
accurately, on a timely basis and in a secure and compliant manner; 
 

 The Fund and Scheme employers have appropriate skills and that training is in place 
to deliver a high quality service and effectively contribute to the changing pensions 
agenda; 
 

 Standards are set and monitored for the delivery of specified activities in accordance 
with LGPS Regulations and minimum standards set out throughout the Pension 
Administration Service Level Agreement; 
 

 The Fund and Scheme employers operate a clear and transparent risk management 
strategy and monitor closely the employer’s ongoing participation in the Fund; 
 

 All payments madedoe to the Pension Fund from the Scheme employer are received 
within required statutory deadlines 
 

The key objectives for the Fund have been identified as: 
 

OBJECTIVE DETAIL TARGET DATE 

Implement i-Connect i-Connect is a secure electronic data 
transfer system which sits between a 
Scheme employer’s payroll system and 
the pension administration software.  See 
section 3.3. 

Depending on size of 
employer: 
 
31/03/198 
31/03/2019 

Implement Employer 
Self-Service (ESS) 
facility 

ESS enables a Scheme employer access 
to the pension records of their own 
scheme members.  See section 3.3. 

31/03/19 

   

Scheme surveys Introduction of an annual Scheme 
employer survey and member surveys. 

2019/2031/03/18 

   

PASA accreditation The Fund is committed to obtaining 
accreditation with the Pensions 
Administration Standards Association.  
See section 3.0. 

31/07/189 

Issue of Annual Benefit 
Statements 

All Annual Benefit Statements to be 
issued to all Scheme members within the 
statutory deadline 

31st August each year 

28

http://www.plsa.co.uk/PolicyandResearch/DB/Employers-participating-in-the-LGPS.aspx
http://www.plsa.co.uk/PolicyandResearch/DB/Employers-participating-in-the-LGPS.aspx


7 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

3.0 ACHIEVING THE OBJECTIVES 
 
There are currently in excess of 250 Scheme employers in the Fund differing in size, structure 
and capability which represents a significant logistical challenge to the management of 
information, processes and services within the Fund.  As the number of Scheme employers 
within the Fund grows as does the demand for more accurate and timely information 
especially with the introduction of the Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) Scheme 
from 1 April 2014.  This information is also vital to ensure that Scheme employer liabilities are 
accurate and that funding targets and employer contribution rates reflect the correct position.  
Furthermore, tPR has introduced higher levels of compliance and the Fund has a duty to 
report breaches of the Regulations where they are considered to be of material significance to 
the Fund. 
 
This strategy applies not only to existing Scheme employers but will also apply to all new 
future employers of the Fund.  Schools (other than Academies, Free Schools and University 
Technical Colleges (UTCs)) are included under the LEA of the relevant Council even if they 
have their own payroll or have outsourced it to a third party. 
 
To assist with compliance in all areas of administration and governance the Fund is 
committed to obtaining accreditation with the Pensions Administration Standards Association 
(PASA).  PASA has been created from within the pensions industry to become the body to set 
meaningful pension administration standards, assess compliance with those standards and 
act as a focal point for Government and the pensions industry on matters relating to pension 
administration.  PASA is focused on three core activities: 

 defining good standards of pension administration relevant to all providers, whether 
in-house, third party; 

 publishing guidance to support those standards; and 

 being an independent accreditation body, assessing the achievement of good 
standards for scheme members and sponsors. 

In order to achieve accreditation the Fund is committed to producing clear, understandable 
and achievable desk top procedures for all areas of administration that will form the basis for 
ensuring full compliance with statutory obligations and tPR requirements. 

3.1  Liaison and communication 

 
The Fund aims to provide clear, relevant, accurate, accessible and timely information to all of 
its stakeholders.  The Fund’s communication strategy is already well developed providing a 
wide range of solutions for all types of communication.  However, with the ever increasing 
number of Scheme members and Scheme employers there is an ever increasing need for 
information and so the Fund is continually developing its communications strategy by 
embracing technology in a number of key areas.  The Fund’s overall strategy is to provide 
communications digitally to its stakeholders wherever possible and for scheme data to be 
transferred electronically between the Fund and its Scheme employers. 
 
The Pension Fund website is continually under review and provides all stakeholders with a 
single access point to relevant services and information. 
 
A dedicated Scheme employer area of the website is 
maintained which includes (but is not limited to): 
 

 General guidance and information on procedures for 
administering the Local Government Pension Scheme; 

 

 Employer bulletins (‘Inscribe’) used to communicate current issues pertaining to the 
Scheme; 

29



8 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

 

 Copies of all standard forms (on-line where possible) to be used by Scheme 
employers when providing information to the pension administration team; 

 

 Copies of all publications issued by the Administering Authority including member 
newsletters, scheme guides and factsheets; 

 

 A link to the LGPS Regulations, LGA Circulars, DHCLG Guidance, tPR Guidance and 
all relevant consultation documents. 

 
Pension administration relies largely on information supplied to the Administering Authority by 
its Scheme employers.  It is therefore key that member records are maintained to a high 
standard so that information provided by the Fund to its Scheme members is accurate and up 
to date at all times. 
 
The pension administration team is contactable during normal office hours on 0845 602 7237 
although direct dial numbers are provided to all Scheme employers.  An office e-helpdesk is 
also available at: 
 

info@berkshirepensions.org.uk. 
 
Each Scheme employer must nominate a Pension Liaison Officer (PLO) to deal with initial 
enquiries received from the Administering Authority.  If preferred a number of officers can be 
nominated (up to a maximum of 4) by the Scheme employer in Appendix A to the Pension 
Administration Service Level Agreement, provided that their specific responsibilities are 
identified (e.g. HR or payroll; formulating policy statements; ensuring payment of monthly 
contributions and submitting returns).  The Scheme employer will inform the Administering 
Authority immediately if these details are amended in anyway.  Furthermore, the PLO(s) will 
be responsible for ensuring that Pension Fund communications are disseminated to all 
relevant officers in their organisations who have responsibility for any part of the process in 
administering the LGPS e.g. payroll officers, HR advisors, Heads of Department and other 
Senior officers. 
 
The Scheme employer will provide the following details in respect of their PLO(s) 

Name; 
Position; 
Direct Telephone Number (if direct dial is available); 
Email contact details; 
Business address; 
Specific responsibilities of each officer (if more than one has been nominated). 

 
The Administering Authority will maintain a schedule of PLOs and ensure that all staff 
concerned with pension administration use the contact details provided by the Scheme 
employer. 
 
The Administering Authority will hold quarterly meetings with the PLOs of the six Unitary 
Authorities to discuss current pension issues and administration procedures.  An annual 
meeting will be held to which all Scheme employers will be invited in accordance with the 
Administering Authority’s ‘Communications Strategy’ (which can be found on the Pension 
Fund’s website). 

3.2 Compliance with statutory requirements 

 
In carrying out their roles and responsibilities in relation to the administration of the LGPS, the 
Administering Authority and Scheme employers will, as a minimum, comply with the statutory 
Scheme regulations and associated legislation.  These include (but are not limited to) the 
following regulations and any amendments thereto: 

30

mailto:info@berkshirepensions.org.uk


9 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

 

 The LGPS Regulations 2013 (as amended) 

 The LGPS (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014 

 The Public Service Pensions (Record Keeping and Miscellaneous) Regulations 2014 

 The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 

 The Automatic Enrolment (Miscellaneous Amendment) Regulations 2013 

 The Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) 
Regulations 2013 

 The Pensions Regulator Code of Practice number 14 (Governance and administration 
of public service pension schemes) 

 Earlier versions of the LGPS Regulations as they remain in force and relate to current 
and former scheme members 

 The Pensions Acts 1995, 2004,2008 

 The Finance Act 2004 

 Various related statutory instruments (Data Protection, Freedom of Information, Age 
Discrimination etc.) 

 
The legislative framework under which this Strategy has been developed can be found at 
Annex 1.  However, it is vital that every Scheme employer understands the statutory 
obligations under which they must fulfil their duties in administering the LGPS.  This Strategy 
and associated SLA sets out agreed quality standards and the methods by which levels of 
performance will be monitored, reviewed and reported to ensure that those statutory 
obligations are maintained in line with the requirements of tPR. 
 
The Fund is committed to providing the necessary tools to enable Scheme employers to meet 
their statutory obligations thereby continually improving the service that Scheme members 
receive at the same time as reducing, and ultimately eradicating, the risk of intervention from, 
and possible sanction by, tPR. 
 
The Fund is also subject to a statutory annual audit of its processes and internal controls.  
The Fund and its Scheme employers will be expected to fully comply with any requests for 
information from both internal and approved external auditors.  Any subsequent 
recommendations made will be considered by the Fund and, where appropriate, duly 
implemented, following discussions with Scheme employers where necessary. 

3.3 Improving the flow of communication 

 
As mentioned previously the strategic aim of the Fund is to provide a seamless, automated 
pension service by employing appropriate technologies and best practice to ensure the most 
effective and efficient service is provided to all of its stakeholders.  The key principle is to 
identify the customer needs and attempt to provide this in the most efficient way. 
 
The Fund will continue to invest and use ICT solutions to assist Scheme employers with the 
delivery of timely and accurate data.  To this end the Fund is committed to working with 
Scheme employers in implementing and using i-Connect, a secure electronic data transfer 
system, as the method by which pension data is transferred between the Scheme employer 
and the Administering Authority. 

i-Connect provides many benefits for both the Scheme employer and the Fund that support 
the strategic aim of improving the flow of communication and ultimately the levels of 
performance: 
 

• Data is encrypted and submitted in real time on each occasion that a payroll is run 
meaning that, not only is data transmitted securely, Scheme members have instant 
access to the most up to date membership information; 
 

31



10 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

• The need for Scheme employers to complete paper forms, spreadsheets and year-end 
returns is removed; 

 
• All membership data is submitted at the correct time thereby ensuring that no data is 

missing and eliminating the risk of data inputting errors; 
 
• All data protection requirements are met and security risks are significantly reduced; 
 
• Instant reconciliation of Scheme contribution payments; 
 
• Addresses auto-enrolment obligations thereby minimising the risk of fines from tPR; 
 
• Automatically maintains membership data in line with the requirements set out in 

Record-Keeping regulations and to the standard required by tPR. 
 
The Fund aims to have the largest Scheme employers using i-Connect by March 20198 with 
medium-sized employers being operational by March 202019.  Consideration will be given to 
bringing smaller employers on-board subject to the solution being considered a viable option 
for those employers. 
 
The Fund will also investigate and scope operatesthe use of a Scheme employer self-service 
(ESS) facility and identify an appropriate timeframe for implementation (no later than 31 
March 2019).  ESS willwhich provides a Scheme employer with access to the pension records 
of their own Scheme members enabling the employer to: 

 view, create and amend member information; 

 Update sensitive information using online forms, thereby ensuring administrator 
checking and approval; 

 Perform benefit calculations; 

 Initiate and receive workflows; 

 Produce and view documents; 

 Run, create and print reports online. 

As these solutions are developed the Fund will work and collaborate with Scheme Employers 
and provide necessary training and support. 
 
To further improve communications the Fund will hold quarterly meetings with the PLOs of the 
largest Scheme employers and provide an open invitation to all other Scheme employers to 
meet with the Fund and discuss any element of pension procedures that they wish. 
 
Furthermore the Fund will issue regular Scheme employer bulletins (‘Inscribe’) and issue at 
least one employer survey per year the outcome of which will be used to further improve 
communications and administration procedures. 

3.4 Establishment of levels of performance (including SLA) 

 
The use of time and accuracy based targets are vital in delivering a high level and cost 
effective service which is measurable, achievable, realistic and time specific whilst complying 
with statutory obligations. 
 
In establishing acceptable levels of performance the Fund has tried to ensure that these 
targets strike a balance between allowing for each Scheme employers’ other work pressures 
and the minimum turnaround times the Fund requires to ensure its system is as up to date as 
possible.  By keeping pension systems up to date the Fund is able to significantly reduce 
pension related workloads for both the Fund and the Scheme employer by avoiding the 

32



11 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

follow-on problems that can occur as well as improving the service provided to Scheme 
members. 
 
The Fund has developed a Service Level Agreement (SLA) (which can be found on the 
Pension Fund website) in consultation with Scheme employers which sets out specific targets 
that apply to all Scheme employers in respect of all pension administration processes, the 
outcomes of which will be subject to external scrutiny by tPR, the Pension Fund Panel, 
Pension Fund Advisory Panel and Pension Board.  It should be noted that many of the targets 
are set to ensure compliance with statutory requirements that already exist. 
 
For some smaller Scheme employers, and for areas other than benefit administration, the 
amount of data typically collected will be too small to assess and report on statistically in a 
meaningful way.  However, these targets will still apply and be considered on a case by case 
basis, particularly where the performance of the Fund or the Scheme employer falls well 
outside the prescribed targets.  In these circumstances the appropriate action will be taken 
where necessary. 

3.5 Procedures for producing performance statistics 

 
The Pensions Regulator requires a Scheme Manager (Administering Authority) to keep 
records of information pertaining to member data across all membership categories and the 
Pension Board plays an independent scrutiny role to ‘assist’ the Scheme Manager with 
regulatory compliance and has the authority to report any serious concerns to tPR. 
 
Assessment of the levels of administrative performance requires that agreed performance 
standards are continuously monitored.   The level of performance will be included in the 
Pension Fund’s annual report and accounts and reported back to Scheme employers at the 
annual Scheme employer meeting.  A ‘Performance Report’ will contain the key areas of 
performance setting out the total number of notifications received against the number 
received within the prescribed timescale set out in the Scheme employer agreed Service 
Level Agreement.  In order to measure the efficiency of service processes the following areas 
of administration will be reported: 
 

 New Scheme joiners; 
 

 Early leavers (those where benefits are not immediately payable); 
 

 Retirements; 
 

 Payments of contributions (including receipt of monthly schedules); 
 

 Settlement of invoices; 
 

 Year-end returns; 
 

 Member complaints. 
 
The Fund will work with Scheme employers to ensure that overall quality and timeliness is 
improved and will identify any problem areas and devise an action plan designed to improve 
service delivery. 
 
The Fund will also present an Administration Stewardship Report at all meetings of the 
Pension Fund Panel, Pension Fund Advisory Panel and Pension Board in which the 
performance of all Scheme employers (and that of the Fund) will be scrutinised and remedial 
actions considered. 
 

33



12 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

tPR imposes a statutory obligation upon an Administering Authority and the Pension Board to 
report failures which are likely to be of material significance.  All breaches of statutory 
requirements must be recorded in the breaches log and reported to the Pension Fund Panel, 
Pension Fund Advisory Panel and Pension Board.  This log may also be published on the 
Pension Fund website and in the Fund’s Annual Report.  Where there is a material breach 
which represents a reportable event to tPR then the Regulator would expect to see an 
improvement plan implemented to rectify this position. 

3.6 Circumstances for issuing notices of underperformance 

 
The purpose of the Pension Administration Strategy is to secure improvement across the 
administrative processes of the Fund.  Both the Fund and its Scheme employers need to play 
their part in meeting this objective.  However, in areas of continuous poor performance the 
Fund has a statutory option to apply financial penalties and may ultimately do so but only as a 
matter of ‘last resort’. 
 
In accordance with Regulation 59(2)(e) of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations 2013, an Administering Authority has to consider the circumstances in which it 
may give a written notice to any of its Scheme employers under Regulation 70 of those 
Regulations (additional costs arising from Scheme employer’s level of performance), on 
account of the Scheme employer’s unsatisfactory performance in carrying out its Scheme 
functions when measured against levels of performance established in accordance with this 
Pension Administration Strategy and associated Pension Administration Service Level 
Agreement. 
 
The Fund will remind PLOs of the key targets on occasion and where individual cases are 
found to be significantly outside of the performance targets set, the Fund will provide the 
Scheme employer with case-tracking information to help the employer understand if structural 
or procedural changes need to be made. 
 
However, where persistent failure occurs and no improvement is demonstrated by the 
Scheme employer and/or unwillingness is shown by the employer to resolve the identified 
issue, the Fund will contact the PLO for the employer to discuss the area of poor performance 
and to find a satisfactory solution.  Where the poor performance continues a formal written 
notice will be issued to the employer and escalated to a senior officer for action. 
 
The following are circumstances upon which the Administering Authority will issue written 
notices of unsatisfactory performance: 
 

 Where, in the opinion of the Administering Authority, it has incurred additional costs as 
a result of a Scheme employer’s unsatisfactory performance the Administering 
Authority will give a written notice to the Scheme employer setting out the reasons for 
forming its opinion, the amount the Administering Authority has determined the 
Scheme employer should pay in accordance with Regulation 69(1)(d) and the basis 
upon which the amount has been calculated; 

 

 Where a Scheme employer fails to make payment of employee and employer 
contributions by the 19th of the month following the period in relation to which the 
contributions were deducted; 
 

 Where a Scheme employer persistently fails to provide the necessary documentation 
in support of the contribution payment; 

  

 Where a Scheme employer has failed to settle an invoice for any additional costs 
arising as a result of their early retirement decisions within the prescribed 21-day 
deadline; 

 

34



13 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

 Where a Scheme employer has failed to notify the Administering Authority that one of 
its employees has become entitled to the release of their pension benefits and, as a 
result of which, payment of any lump sum is made later than 30 calendar days from 
the date that pension benefits become payable. 

 
On each occasion that any notice of unsatisfactory performance is issued it will be included in 
the AdministrationStewardship Report presented at meetings of the Berkshire Pension Fund 
Panel, Pension Fund Advisory Panel and Pension Board. 
 
Where the Pension Fund has become liable to pay interest due to the unsatisfactory 
performance of a Scheme employer, consideration will be given to charging that interest 
payment to the appropriate Scheme employer.  

 
Interest will be calculated in accordance with Regulation 71 of the 
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (one per 
cent above base rate on a day to day basis from the due date to 
the date of payment and compounded with three-monthly rests). 
 
The Administering Authority will always assist the Scheme 
employer to resolve any issues but where persistent failure by a 
Scheme employer to meet payment deadlines can be evidenced, 
or where a Scheme employer continually fails to meet statutory 
requirements and/or the performance standards set out in the 
Pension Administration Service Level Agreement, further 
consideration will be given to whether or not that Scheme 
employer should be reported to the Pensions Regulator in line 
with Code of Practice number 14, ‘Governance and Administration 
of Public Service Pension Schemes’. 

 
Should the Fund incur any fine or charge for breach of its statutory duties which is as a result 
of a Scheme employer’s performance failure, the Fund reserves the right to require the 
Scheme employer to reimburse it within 21 days of the fine or charge having been received 
by the Fund. 
 
It is vital that all Scheme employers ensure that appropriate record-keeping is maintained and 
where they outsource their payroll, HR or pension administration functions to a third party, 
that the Scheme employer is clear that the legal responsibility for the provision of pension 
data to the Administering Authority lies with the Scheme employer and not the third party.  
Scheme employers must therefore ensure, as part of any contract entered into with a third 
party, that the third party has sufficiently robust processes in place to fulfil the statutory duties 
of the Scheme and the performance levels set out in the Pension Administration Service 
Level Agreement. 
 
See Annex 2 for a schedule of notices of unsatisfactory performance. 

3.7 Disputes 

 
The Fund has a clear internal disputes resolution procedure (IDRP) set out for members of 
the LGPS which can be found on the Pension Fund’s website.  Scheme employers are, 
however, required to nominate an adjudicator to deal with disputes at stage 1 of the process. 
Scheme employers are asked to supply the details of their stage 1 adjudicator as part of their 
discretionary policy statement and should advise the Fund immediately of changes made in 
this regard. 
 
Where a Scheme employer is in dispute with a decision or action taken by the Fund, the Fund 
will in the first instance attempt to resolve the matter internally and may seek an independent 
senior mediator from within RBWM as the Administering Authority to make a final 

35



14 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

determination.  Should this prove to be unsuccessful, a suitable, mutually agreeable and 
independent third party shall be appointed to determine the outcome of the matter. 

4.0 REVIEW AND CONSULTATION PROCESS 

 
The Fund will review this Strategy to ensure it remains up to date and meets the necessary 
regulatory requirements at least annually.  A current version of the Strategy will always be 
available on the Pension Fund website. 
 
In preparing this Strategy the Fund has consulted with Scheme employers and other persons 
considered appropriate.  Where it is necessary to revise the Strategy all Scheme employers 
will be notified of the changes and advised where they can obtain a copy of the revised 
strategy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by the Berkshire Pension Fund Panel: 16 14 January 20196  
Next review date: January 202019 
 
 
 

36



15 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

ANNEX 1 – LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK FOR THIS STRATEGY 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 
 

Pension administration strategy 

59.—(1) An administering authority may prepare a written statement of the authority’s 
policies in relation to such of the matters mentioned in paragraph (2) as it considers 
appropriate (“its pension administration strategy”) and, where it does so, paragraphs (3) to 
(7) apply. 

(2) The matters are—  

(a) procedures for liaison and communication with Scheme employers in relation to 
which it is the administering authority (“its Scheme employers”); 

(b) the establishment of levels of performance which the administering authority and 
its Scheme employers are expected to achieve in carrying out their Scheme functions 
by— 

(i) the setting of performance targets, 

(ii) the making of agreements about levels of performance and associated 
matters, or 

(iii) such other means as the administering authority considers appropriate; 

(c) procedures which aim to secure that the administering authority and its Scheme 
employers comply with statutory requirements in respect of those functions and with 
any agreement about levels of performance; 

(d) procedures for improving the communication by the administering authority and its 
Scheme employers to each other of information relating to those functions; 

(e) the circumstances in which the administering authority may consider giving written 
notice to any of its Scheme employers under regulation 70 (additional costs arising 
rom Scheme employer’s level of performance) on account of that employer’s 
unsatisfactory performance in carrying out its Scheme functions when measured 
against levels of performance established under sub-paragraph (b); 

(f) the publication by the administering authority of annual reports dealing with— 

(i) the extent to which that authority and its Scheme employers have achieved the 
levels of performance established under sub-paragraph (b), and 

(ii) such other matters arising from its pension administration strategy as it 
considers appropriate; and 

(g) such other matters as appear to the administering authority after consulting its 
Scheme employers and such other persons as it considers appropriate, to be suitable 
for inclusion in that strategy. 

(3) An administering authority must—  

(a) keep its pension administration strategy under review; and 

(b) make such revisions as are appropriate following a material change in its policies 
in relation to any of the matters contained in the strategy. 

(4) In preparing or reviewing and making revisions to its pension administration strategy, 
an administering authority must consult its Scheme employers and such other persons as 
it considers appropriate. 

(5) An administering authority must publish— 

(a) its pension administration strategy; and 

37



16 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

(b) where revisions are made to it, the strategy as revised. 

(6) Where an administering authority publishes its pension administration strategy, or that 
strategy as revised, it must send a copy of it to each of its Scheme employers and to the 
Secretary of State as soon as is reasonably practicable. 

(7) An administering authority and its Scheme employers must have regard to the pension 
administration strategy when carrying out their functions under these Regulations. 

(8) In this regulation references to the functions of an administering authority include, 
where applicable, its functions as a Scheme employer. 

 
 

Additional costs arising from Scheme employer’s level of performance 

70.—(1) This regulation applies where, in the opinion of an administering authority, it has 
incurred additional costs which should be recovered from a Scheme employer because of 
that employer’s level of performance in carrying out its functions under these Regulations. 

(2) The administering authority may give written notice to the Scheme employer stating— 

(a) the administering authority’s reasons for forming the opinion mentioned in 
paragraph (1); 

(b) the amount the authority has determined the Scheme employer should pay under 
regulation 69(1)(d) (payments by Scheme employers to administering authorities) in 
respect of those costs and the basis on which the specified amount is calculated; and 

(c) where the administering authority has prepared a pension administration strategy 
under regulation 59, the provisions of the strategy which are relevant to the decision to 
give the notice and to the matters in sub-paragraphs (a) or (b). 

 
 

Statements of policy about exercise of discretionary functions 

60.—(1) A Scheme employer must prepare a written statement of its policy in relation to 
the exercise of its functions under regulations— 

(a) 16(2)(e) and 16(4)(d) (funding of additional pension); 

(b) 30(6) (flexible retirement); 

(c) 30(8) (waiving of actuarial reduction); and 

(d) 31 (award of additional pension), 

and an administering authority must prepare such a statement in relation to the exercise of 
its functions under regulation 30(8) in cases where a former employer has ceased to be a 
Scheme employer. 

(2) Each Scheme employer must send a copy of its statement to each relevant 
administering authority before 1st July 2014 and must publish its statement. 

(3) A body required to prepare a statement under paragraph (1) must— 

(a) keep its statement under review; and 

(b) make such revisions as are appropriate following a change in its policy. 

(4) Before the expiry of a month beginning with the date any such revisions are made, 
each Scheme employer must send a copy of its revised statement to each relevant 
administering authority, and must publish its statement as revised. 

(5) In preparing, or reviewing and making revisions to its statement, a body required to 
prepare a statement under paragraph (1) must have regard to the extent to which the 
exercise of the functions mentioned in paragraph (1) in accordance with its policy could 
lead to a serious loss of confidence in the public service. 

38



17 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

(6) In this regulation a relevant administering authority in relation to a Scheme employer, is 
any authority which is an appropriate administering authority for that employer’s employees. 
 
 

Statements of policy concerning communications with members and Scheme 
employers 

61.—(1) An administering authority must prepare, maintain and publish a written statement 
setting out its policy concerning communications with— 

(a) members; 

(b) representatives of members; 

(c) prospective members; and 

(d) Scheme employers. 

(2) In particular the statement must set out its policy on— 

(a) the provision of information and publicity about the Scheme to members, 
representatives of members and Scheme employers; 

(b) the format, frequency and method of distributing such information or publicity; and 

(c) the promotion of the Scheme to prospective members and their employers. 

(3) The statement must be revised and published by the administering authority following a 
material change in their policy on any of the matters referred to in paragraph (2). 

 
 

Pension fund annual report 

57.—(1) An administering authority must, in relation to each year beginning on 1st April 
2014 and each subsequent year, prepare a document (“the pension fund annual report”) 
which contains— 

(a) a report about the management and financial performance during the year of each 
of the pension funds maintained by the authority; 

(b) a report explaining the authority’s investment policy for each of those funds and 
reviewing the performance during the year of the investments of each fund; 

(c) a report of the arrangements made during the year for the administration of each of 
those funds; 

(d) for each of those funds, a statement by the actuary who carried out the most recent 
valuation of the assets and liabilities of the fund in accordance with regulation 62 
(actuarial valuations of pension funds), of the level of funding disclosed by that 
valuation; 

(e) the current version of the statement under regulation 55 (governance compliance 
statement); 

(f) for each of the funds, the fund account and net asset statement with supporting 
notes and disclosures prepared in accordance with proper practices; 

(g) an annual report dealing with— 

(i) the extent to which the authority and the Scheme employers in relation to which 
it is the administering authority have achieved any levels of performance set out in 
a pension administration strategy in accordance with regulation 59 (pension 
administration strategy), and 

(ii) such other matters arising from a pension administration strategy as it 
considers appropriate; 

39



18 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

(h) the current version of the statement referred to in regulation 58 (funding strategy 
statement); 

(i) the current version of the statement under regulation 712 of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 201609 
(statement of investment principles)(1); 

(j) the current version of the statement under regulation 61 (statements of policy 
concerning communications with members and Scheme employers); and 

(k) any other material which the authority considers appropriate. 

(2) The authority must publish the pension fund annual report on or before 1st December 
following the Scheme year end. 

(3) In preparing and publishing the pension fund annual report, the authority must have 
regard to guidance given by the Secretary of State. 

 
 
Public Service Pensions Act 2013 
 
Administration 
 

17 Regulatory oversight. 

(1) Schedule 4 contains provision relating to the regulation of schemes under section 1, 
new public body pension schemes and connected schemes. 

(2) The Secretary of State may by order make— 

(a) provision consequential on Schedule 4, and 

(b) further provision for, or in connection with, the regulation of public service pension 
schemes within the meaning of the Pensions Act 2004 (as amended by that 
Schedule). 

(3) The provision referred to in subsection (2) includes provision made by amending any 
legislation (including this Act). 

(4) An order under this section may make different provision for different purposes. 

(5) An order under this section is subject to— 

(a) the affirmative procedure, if it amends primary legislation, and 

(b) the negative procedure, in any other case. 
 
 
SCHEDULE 4 Regulatory oversight 
 
Amends the Pensions Act 2004 to cover Public Service Pensions and the Pensions Regulator 
involvement. 
 

16 Records. 

(1) The scheme manager for a scheme under section 1 and any statutory pension scheme 
that is connected with it must keep such records as may be specified in regulations made 
by the Secretary of State. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

40



19 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

The Public Service Pensions (Record Keeping and Miscellaneous Amendments) 
Regulations 2014. 
 

Records 

3.  For the purposes of section 16 of the 2013 Act, the scheme manager for a public 
service pension scheme (1) must keep the records which are specified in regulations 4 to 
6. 

 
Records of member and beneficiary information 

4.—(1) In respect of member and beneficiary information, the records which are specified 
are— 

(a) the name of each member and of each beneficiary; 

(b) the date of birth of each member and of each beneficiary; 

(c) the gender of each member and of each beneficiary; 

(d) the last known postal address of each member and of each beneficiary; 

(e) each member’s identification number in respect of the scheme; 

(f) the national insurance number of each member who has been allocated such a 
number; and 

(g) in respect of each active member, deferred member and pensioner member— 

(i) the dates on which such member joins and leaves the scheme; 

(ii) details of such member’s employment with any employer participating in the 
scheme including— 

(aa) the period of pensionable service in that employment; and 

(bb) the amount of pensionable earnings in each year of that employment. 

(2) In respect of each member’s rights and, where applicable, of each beneficiary’s 
entitlement, to any benefits which are not money purchase benefits, injury benefits or 
compensation benefits under the scheme, the records which are specified are— 

(a) any formula or formulas used for calculating the member’s or beneficiary’s 
pension or benefit; 

(b) the percentage to be applied in respect of revaluation for each year to the 
member’s accrued rights to benefits under the scheme; and 

(c) any increase to be applied to the pensioner member’s or beneficiary’s pension 
or benefit in payment in each year. 

(3) In respect of each member’s rights to any money purchase benefits under the 
scheme, the records which are specified are— 

(a) any investment decisions taken by, or in relation to, the member; 

(b) any investments held on behalf of the member; and 

(c) any anticipated date of retirement notified by the member. 

(4) In respect of pension credits under section 29(1)(b) of the Welfare Reform and 
Pensions Act 1999(1) (creation of pension debits and credits) or under article 26(1)(b) 
of the Welfare Reform and Pensions (Northern Ireland) Order 1999(2) (creation of 
pension debits and credits), the records which are specified are records of any 
information relevant to calculating each member’s rights under the scheme which are 
attributable (directly or indirectly) to a pension credit. 

(5) In respect of pension debits under section 29(1)(a) of the Welfare Reform and 
Pensions Act 1999 or under article 26(1)(a) of the Welfare Reform and Pensions 

41



20 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

(Northern Ireland) Order 1999, the records which are specified are records of any 
information relevant to calculating any reduction in each member’s rights under the 
scheme which are attributable to a pension debit. 

 
Records of transactions 

5.  In respect of transactions, the records which are specified are— 

(a) any employer contribution or member contribution paid in relation to each active 
member; 

(b) payments of pensions and benefits including the date of the payment; 

(c) except where the payment is a payment under paragraph (b) or (f), payments 
made by, or on behalf of, the scheme manager to any person including— 

(i) the name and address of the person to whom payment was made; and 

(ii) the reason for that payment; 

(d) any movement or transfer of assets from the scheme to any person including— 

(i) the name and address of the person to whom the assets were moved or 
transferred; and 

(ii) the reason for that transaction; 

(e) the receipt or payment of money or assets in respect of the transfer of members into 
or out of the scheme including— 

(i) the name of that member; 

(ii) the terms of the transfer; 

(iii) the name of the scheme into or out of which the member has been transferred; 

(iv) the date of the transfer; and 

(v) the date of receipt or payment of money or assets; 

(f) payments made to any member who leaves the scheme, other than on a transfer, 
including— 

(i) the name of that member; 

(ii) the date of leaving; 

(iii) the member’s entitlement at that date; 

(iv) the method used for calculating any entitlement under the scheme; and 

(v) how that entitlement was discharged; 

(g) payments made to any employer participating in the scheme; 

(h) any amount due to the scheme which has been written off in the scheme’s accounts; 
and 

(i) any other payment to the scheme including the name and address of the person from 
whom it is received and, where a payment is made in respect of a member, the name of 
the member in respect of whom it is made. 

 
Records of pension board meetings and decisions 

6.—(1) In relation to any pension board meetings, the records which are specified are 
records relating to any such meeting including— 

(a) the date, time and place of the meeting; 

(b) the names of all the members of the pension board invited to the meeting; 

42



21 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

(c) the name of any person who attended the meeting and the capacity in which 
each attended; and 

(d) any decisions made at the meeting. 

(2) In relation to any other decision made by the members of the pension board in the 
exercise of their functions as members of the pension board, the records which are 
specified are records relating to any such decision including— 

(a) the date, time and place of the decision; and 

(b) the names of the members of the pension board who participated in making the 
decision. 

(3) In relation to any decision made by a committee or sub-committee of the pension 
board which has not been ratified by the pension board, the records which are specified 
are records relating to any such decision including— 

(a) the date, time and place of the decision; and 

(b) the names of the members of the committee or sub-committee who participated in 
making the decision. 

 
Amendment of the Occupational Pension Schemes (Scheme Administration) 
Regulations 1996 

7.  For regulation 16A of the Occupational Pension Schemes (Scheme Administration) 
Regulations 1996(1) (exemptions from the requirement to notify the Authority or the member 
of a late contribution payment) substitute— 

“Exemptions from the requirement to notify the Authority or the member of a late 
contribution payment 

16A.—(1) Subject to paragraph (3), where an amount corresponding to any contribution 
payable on behalf of an active member of an occupational pension scheme— 

(a) is deducted from that member’s earnings in respect of any employment; 
and 

(b) is not paid to the trustees or managers of the scheme within the period of 
19 days beginning on the first day of the month after which the deduction is 
made, 

the trustees or managers do not need to give notice of the failure to pay that amount within 
that period to the Authority or member in the circumstances specified in paragraph (2). 

(2) The specified circumstances are where the trustees or managers of the scheme 
are exempt from the requirement— 

(a) to secure the preparation, maintenance and revision of a payment schedule 
for the purposes of section 87(1) of the 1995 Act (schedules of payments to 
money purchase schemes), by virtue of regulation 17(2); or 

(b) to prepare, review and if necessary revise a schedule of contributions under 
section 227 of the 2004 Act (schedule of contributions), by virtue of any of sub-
paragraphs (a) to (i) and (k) to (m) of regulation 17(1) of the Occupational Pension 
Schemes (Scheme Funding) Regulations 2005(3). 

(3) Paragraph (1) does not apply in circumstances where the scheme is a public 
service pension scheme. 

(4) For the purposes of this regulation— 

“the 2013 Act” means the Public Service Pensions Act 2013; 

“connected”, “new public body pension scheme” and “statutory pension 
scheme” have the meanings given in section 37 of the 2013 Act (general 
interpretation); 

43



22 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

“public service pension scheme” means— 

(a) a scheme established under section 1 of the 2013 Act (schemes for persons in 
public service); 

(b) a new public body pension scheme; 

(c) any statutory pension scheme which is connected with a scheme referred to in 
paragraph (a) or (b).” 

 
Explanatory note for this amendment 
 
Under section 49 of the Pensions Act 1995 trustees or managers must notify the Pensions 
Regulator and the member where there is a late payment of a contribution where such late 
payment is likely to be of material significance to the Pensions Regulator’s function.  
Regulation 16A of the Scheme Administration Regulations sets out exceptions to that duty.  
The amendments mean that managers of public service pension schemes under the 2013 Act 
cannot benefit from the exception and will now be subject to the duty to notify. 
 
 

44



23 
Version 65 – January 20196 

 
 

 

ANNEX 2 – WRITTEN NOTICES OF UNSATISFACTORY PERFORMANCE 
 

1 In accordance with Regulation 69(1)(d), where, in the opinion of the Administering 
Authority, it has incurred additional costs in line with Regulation 70 as a result of a 
Scheme employer’s unsatisfactory performance, the Administering Authority will give a 
written notice to the Scheme employer setting out the reasons for forming its opinion, 
the amount the Administering Authority has determined the Scheme employer should 
pay and the basis upon which the amount has been calculated. 
 

2A 

 

 

Failure to make payment of monthly employee and employer contributions by the 19th 
of the month following the period to which the contributions relate will result in the 
Administering Authority issuing a written notice of unsatisfactory performance.  Where a 
Scheme employer persistently fails to make payments within the statutory deadline and 
the Administering Authority considers that this is of a material significance, the Scheme 
employer will be reported to the Pensions Regulator. 

 

2B Where a Scheme employer persistently fails to provide the necessary documentation in 
support of the contribution payment the Administering Authority will issued a written 
notice of unsatisfactory performance. 

 

3 Failure to make payment of a capital cost owing to the pension fund within 21 calendar 
days from the date of issue of an invoice will result in the Administering Authority 
issuing a written notice of unsatisfactory performance.  This will be reported as part of a 
Stewardship report presented at meetings of the Berkshire Pension Fund Panel, 
Pension Fund Advisory Panel and Pension Board and steps may be taken to recover 
the amount of interest lost by the Pension Fund calculated in accordance with 
Regulation 71 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013. 

 

4 Where as a result of the Scheme employer’s failure to notify the administering authority 
of a scheme member’s retirement, interest becomes payable on any retirement lump 
sum paid, the Administering Authority will issue a written notice of unsatisfactory 
performance.  This will be reported as part of a Stewardship report presented at 
meetings of the Berkshire Pension Fund Panel, Pension Fund Advisory Panel and 
Pension Board and steps may be taken to recover the amount of interest lost by the 
Pension Fund calculated in accordance with Regulation 71 of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013. 

 
 

NOTES 

1. The Administering Authority has the power to charge a Scheme employer additional costs 
arising from the Scheme employer’s level of performance in accordance with Regulation 70 of 
the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 which will be referred to in all cases. 

2. Payment of contributions is set out in clause 4.2.5 of the SLA. 

3. Payment of capital costs is set out in clause 6.12 of the SLA. 

4. Notifications of retirements is set out in clause 4.2.4 of the SLA.  Regulation 71 of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 states that interest must be calculated at one 
per cent above base rate on a day to day basis from the due date to the date of payment and 
compounded with three-monthly rests.  If late payment of a lump sum occurs as a result of a 
failure by the scheme member to provide information to the administering authority, the 
pension fund will be liable for the payment of any interest due. 

45



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

47

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

49

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 PENSION FUND PANEL WORKPLAN 2018-19
	6 Minutes
	8 EMPLOYER RISK SERVICE PROPOSAL

